
Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 1 of 17 

 

Board of Veterans Services 

Meeting Minutes 

April 16, 2021 

 

A meeting of the Board of Veterans Services (BVS) was held electronically on Friday, April 16, 

2021. 

 

Members Present 

 Victor Angry 

 Carl Bedell 

 Carl Bess 

 Paige Cherry 

 Michael Dick 

 Jenny Dye 

 Mario Flores 

 Buddy Fowler 

 Dan Helmer 

 James Icenhour 

 Thurraya Kent 

 Lyla Kohistany 

 Tammi Lambert 

 John Lesinski 

 Maimi Locke 

 Kathy Owens 

 Bryce Reeves 

 Frank Reyes 

 Julie Waters 

 William Ashton, Chairman, Joint Leadership Council  

 Jack Lanier, 2nd Vice Chair, Veterans Services Foundation 

 Pam Seay, representing the Virginia War Memorial Foundation 

 John Maxwell, Commissioner, Virginia Department of Veterans Services 

 

Members Absent 

 John Bell 

 Kathleen Murphy 

 Marcus Simon 

 

Commonwealth of Virginia Officials Present 

 Kathleen Jabs, Deputy Secretary of Veterans and Defense Affairs 

 Jon Ward, Assistant Secretary of Veterans and Defense Affairs 

 Tom Crabbs, Military Liaison Veterans and Defense Affairs  

 Jim Flaherty, AGO 

 Steven Combs, Virginia Department of Veterans Services (VDVS) 

 Claudia Flores, VDVS 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 2 of 17 

 

 Thomas Herthel, VDVS 

 Annie Walker, VDVS 

 Tina Parlett-Calhoun, VDVS 

 Brandi Jancaitis, VDVS 

 Donna Williams, VDVS 

 Beverly VanTull, VDVS 

 Ravi Padma, VDVS 

 Michael Henshaw, VDVS 

 Nicole Anderson, VDVS 

 Martina Murray, VDVS 

 

Materials Distributed as part of the Agenda Packet (sent via e-mail and posted on BVS 

webpage) 

 Draft Agenda 

 Draft Minutes of the December 17, 2020, meeting 

 VDVS Operations Update 

 VDVS Compact with Virginia Veterans Strategic Priorities 

 VDVS Strategic Priorities Brief 

 2021 Military Veterans Bills and Budget Matrix 

 JLC Report 

 Veterans Services Foundation Report 

 Virginia War Memorial Report 

 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Michael Dick called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. and welcomed all attendees to 

the meeting.   

 

Chairman Dick led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

Chairman Dick took a moment to comment on the words of the Pledge of Allegiance and 

encouraged members to take pause and reflect on the meaning of the words, and the veteran 

community. 

 

Chairman Dick welcomed two new members, Ms. Jenny Dye and Mr. Mario Flores.  Chairman 

Dick asked the two members to introduce themselves.  Ms. Dye noted she has a background in 

professional counseling and currently works at Virginia Tech.  Ms. Dye’s spouse is an Army 

veteran.  Mr. Flores commented he is serving as an Army Reserve member and was selected as a 

Defense Fellow.   

 

Roll Call and Quorum Determination 

The roll call determined a quorum with 22 of 26 members present. 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Chairman Dick asked for a motion to approve the agenda by.  Victor Angry made the motion, 

seconded by Senator Reeves.  The motion carried by unanimous consent. (See attachment 1) 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 3 of 17 

 

 

Approval of Minutes of the April 16, 2020, Meeting 
Chairman Dick asked for a motion to waive the reading of the minutes since they minutes from 

the December 17, 2020 meeting were available to all members in advance.  Senator Locke made 

the motion, seconded by Senator Reeves to waive the reading of the minutes.  The Chairman 

asked for any opposition.  In the absence of opposition, the Chairman ruled that the motion 

carried.   

 

Introduction of VDVS staff and guests  
VDVS Commissioner Maxwell introduced the VDVS team members.  The names are recorded 

above.   

 

Chairman Dick introduced Deputy Secretary Jabs, Assistant Secretary Ward, and Military 

Liaison Tom Crabbs from the Secretary’s office. 

 

Update on DVS 
Chairman Dick asked VDVS Commissioner Maxwell to provide an update on the VDVS 

Operational Status.  Commissioner Maxwell commented that in-person services are expanding 

with the decrease of the effects of COVID.  He noted 32 of the 34 offices are opening for 

appointments.  He commented that walk-in services are difficult at this time given the COVID 

environment.   

 

Commissioner Maxwell reported there are no COVID cases at this time at the two Veterans Care 

Centers.  Due to the census dropping and the increased costs associate with COVID, the 

Commissioner commented on the operational deficit and the need for supplemental funding.  He 

noted for the VVCC, the supplemental funding needed in FY21 is $1million from the economic 

contingency fund, and in FY22, the amount is $2 - $5 million for VVCC / $1 - $3 million for 

Sitter and Barfoot.   

 

The Commissioner commented that the cemeteries exceeded their monthly average in February.  

He noted the Amelia expansion will begin shortly and there will be an increase to the spousal 

burial fees.   

 

Commissioner Maxwell noted the planned Memorial Day service at the War Memorial.   

 

With VVFS, Commissioner Maxwell commented on the supply of housing assistance for 

veterans but the shortage of housing availability.  He made note of the VISR program and the 

Women Veterans program.  Commissioner Maxwell noted the V3 program has nearly 1400 

certified companies and the grant money for this year was used in its entirety.   

 

Commissioner Maxwell highlighted the Diversity Equity and Inclusion effort within the Agency 

to enhance the working environment, moving forward with the One Virginia Plan. (See 

Attachment 2) 

 

Commissioner Maxwell asked for questions.   

 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 4 of 17 

 

Chairman Dick thanked Commissioner Maxwell asked the members to send reminders about the 

Memorial Day Service and the Women Veterans Summit.  Chairman Dick asked the vaccination 

status of the VDVS staff outside of the Care Centers.  Commissioner Maxwell said the vaccine is 

not mandated.  Chairman Maxwell asked if the vaccination status drives the opening of offices.  

Commissioner Maxwell commented on the safety measures in place within each of the offices 

and protocol when there are known exposures. 

 

Chairman Dick asked if there were any questions.  None heard.  The Chairman turned the floor 

back to the Commissioner. 

 

VDVS Strategic Priorities (See Attachment 3) 

Commissioner Maxwell presented the strategic priorities brief on the Compact with Virginia 

Veterans.  He provided background information on previous VDVS leadership meetings 

whereby the leadership team reviewed requirements outlined in the Code of Virginia. 

 

As background information, he noted the passion and commitment of VDVS staff members as a 

strength.  He also noted the agency is service line centered but works hard on cross-

collaboration.   He commented that direct services are difficult and commented on VSRs 

listening daily to veteran stories of trauma.  The Commissioner noted all the strengths / 

weaknesses were considered in building priorities.  He also commented the desire to build 

partnerships. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell briefed VDVS as a Port of Entry to Services.  He commented on holistic 

needs assessments to connect veterans and their families to resources and benefits.  He also noted 

the importance of timely assistance. 

 

The commissioner reviewed the Code of Virginia requiring VDVS to establish and implement a 

compact with Virginia’s veterans with the goal of making Virginia America’s most veteran-

friendly state.   

 

Based on the requirement within the Code, the Commissioner presented the written Compact to 

unify the state’s efforts in veteran services, serve as a primary port of entry, connect veterans and 

their families to earned benefits, optimize technology advances to enrich services and increase 

outreach. 

 

The Commissioner paused for questions.  Chairman Dick asked if the Commissioner took into 

account the previous POC reports.  The Commissioner acknowledged that the POC reports are 

considered in the priorities and commented the Compact summary is the start and VDVS can 

build on it with goals and objectives. 

 

The Commissioner presented the top three strategic priorities of the Compact, the Port of Entry, 

and the Investment in the VDVS Team.  

 

The Commissioner presented the strategic priority of the Compact with Virginia’s Veterans with 

the Goal of making Virginia the most veteran-friendly state in the nation, and the objectives for 

achieving this goal.  The Commissioner commented on the desire for VDVS to be the example-



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 5 of 17 

 

setter.  He noted accessibility is important.  The Commissioner commented that holistic 

connections and need analysis is an important part of the Port of Entry piece. 

 

Kathy Owens asked the Commissioner about the taxation of veteran retirement pay and noted 

that Virginia is not in the top ten of veteran friendly state but instead moved into the mid-

twenties according to one source.  Ms. Owens commented that the source indicated 8 of the top 

10 states did not tax military retirement.  Ms. Owens commented on the possibility of conducting 

another study to determine how important this issue is for veterans remaining in Virginia. 

 

The Commissioner commented from a retiree perspective, WalletHub rated Virginia number one 

but noted this topic continues to surface as a point of concern for retirees. 

 

Senator Reeves commented that the General Assembly studied this several times.  Senator 

Reeves noted that through DoD, Virginia is still ranked number one or number two for being 

military friendly for the active component.  He commented the General Assembly looked at the 

impact of income tax relief several times and although it should continue to be discussed, it 

might not be an immediate initiative. 

 

Chairman Dick thanked Senator Reeves and asked Senator Locke for her comments.  Nothing 

heard from Senator Locke.  Ms. Thurraya Kent asked what the criteria is for determining that 

Virginia is the most veteran friendly state. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell commented on WalletHub’s criteria and noted the objectives within his 

strategic priorities contribute to the metrics for veteran friendly status.  Commissioner Maxwell 

commented his desire for VDVS to work with the BVS and JLC on the criteria. 

 

Senator Reeves asked to get the study of the Roosevelt Matrix Group on where Virginia stands 

as a whole to the Board.   

 

Deputy Secretary Jabs commented there are two reports with specific criteria such as access to 

medical, access to DVS offices, and access to parks.  She noted the two reports will be 

distributed to the Board. 

 

Ms. Tammi Lambert commented that WalletHub criteria is very different from DoD and 

recommended both be sent to the members of the Board.   

 

Ms. Kent noted the need and benefit of clarity with respect to the criteria being used to determine 

the veteran-friendly status. 

 

Chairman Dick asked if the Board is asking for VDVS to quantify the criteria for veteran 

friendly status.  Ms. Kent confirmed. 

 

Mr. Victor Angry commented these discussions drill down into communities and this is a piece 

to identify.   

 

Senator Reeves noted that DoD metrics look at more than veterans and there is an opportunity to 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 6 of 17 

 

combine the two lists and determine what the gaps might be and provide that information to the 

JLC and focus for the General Assembly. 

 

Chairman Dick thanked the members for their comments and noted the importance of strategic 

communication.   Chairman Dick turned the floor back to the Commissioner. 

 

Commissioner thanked the Board for their comments.  He commented on the number of VDVS 

partners that work on behalf of veterans.  He noted there are many benefits for veterans across 

the Commonwealth and it is important to tell that story. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell discussed the Point of Entry strategic priority and noted partnerships and 

access to services.  He commented on the caregiver support program as an objective toward 

achieving the port of entry goal.  He also noted technology as an objective.   

 

Commissioner Maxwell discussed the Strategic Priority of Investment in the VDVS Team.  He 

commented on career development to help those who want to grow as leaders.  He discussed 

salaries as average with the state occupational codes but there is a need to make sure they are 

coded properly.  Commissioner Maxwell commented on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion and 

support functions as objectives. 

 

The Chairman thanked the Commissioner and asked for questions.  Mr. Carl Bess asked if the 

Virginia Dept. of labor and Industries is still involved with the apprenticeship program.  

Commissioner Maxwell commented that DOL is involved with VEC and asked DC Walker if 

she had any more information.  Martina Murray commented on the relationship with DOL. 

 

Ms. Tammi Lambert asked if VDVS has communication initiatives.  Commissioner Maxwell 

confirmed that VDVS has a targeted communication plan. 

 

Post Session Report 

Chairman Dick turned the floor over to Delegate Fowler.  Delegate Fowler noted he had the 

opportunity to go to the War Memorial and commented on the addition to the Shrine and 

highlighted the General Assembly Resolution honoring Russell Scott. 

 

Chairman Dick turned the floor over to Delegate Helmer.  Delegate Helmer commented on the 

connection as a state to the origins of military service.  Delegate Helmer thanked the Chairman 

and the Board on his legislation signed by the Governor. 

 

Chairman Dick turned the floor over to Senator Locke.  The Senator noted budget items 

supportive of veterans. 

 

Chairman Dick turned the floor over to Senator Reeves.  The Senator thanked Delegate Helmer 

for getting his bill passed and noted the legislation brought forward by the JLC.  Senator Reeves 

thanks the National Guard. 

 

Chairman Dick turned the floor over to Claudia Flores for an update on the Bill Matrix.  She 

summarized the legislation passed and approved by the Governor related to military and veteran 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 7 of 17 

 

bills. 

 

AS Ward highlighted Delegate Tran’s and Senator Bell’s bill on anti-discrimination.  AS Ward 

commented on the initiative and tied it to Virginia’s commitment to the military and veterans. 

 

Commissioner Maxwell thanked the Board for all the support and advocacy and commented it 

will directly improve services for military members, veterans and their families.  

 

Chairman Dick asked for further comments or questions.  None heard.  Chairman Dick moved 

on to the next agenda item. 

 

JLC Report (See Attachment 4) 

Chairman Ashton commented on the virtual environment of this year’s General Assembly 

session and noted the opportunity to speak to members virtually that was not available 

previously.  He noted 2 of the 8 JLC initiatives were approved by the Governor.  Chairman Dick 

noted his term on the JLC ends 30 June 2021.   Chairman Ashton commented on subject areas of 

interest for 2022 initiatives to include veteran suicide. 

 

VSF Report (See Attachment 5) 

Mr. Lanier commented on the VSF meeting held virtually in March.  He noted a partnership with 

Sentara and the financial donation from Sentara to the VSF.  He noted overall, donations are 

down but there are plans to increase the fundraising effort.  

 

Virginia War Memorial Foundation (See Attachment 6) 

Ms. Seay commented on the exhibition to open on Veterans Day, presenting 30 profiles of names 

on the Shrine in order to focus attention on all of Virginia’s veterans.  She commented on the 

Mighty Pen Project, highlighting this program the virtual environment allows more participation.  

She highlighted the speaker series as well. 

 

Good of the Order Report 

Mr. Lesinski reported the VSF is working with DVS and the Virginia Community College 

System through the Altria Grant to present laptops to veterans and their spouses in the 

Community College System.  He highlighted two presentations.   

 

Chairman Dick commended the book Robert E. Lee and Me, a Southerner’s Reckoning with the 

Myth of the Lost Cause by Ty Seidule. 

 

Chairman Dick asked for any New Business 

 

Chairman Dick noted information submitted by Beverly VanTull on the Women Veterans 

Summit.  Ms. VanTull thanked the Board for their work and thanked Delegate Murphy and 

Senator Kiggans for their work on a Resolution honoring Ms. Maybell Campbell. 

 

Public Comment 

No comment heard. 

 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 8 of 17 

 

Wrap Up & Adjournment 

Chairman Dick asked for a motion to adjourn.  Kathy Owens made the motion, seconded by Mr. 

Angry.  In the absence of any objections, the motion carried. 

 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 9 of 17 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

BOARD OF VETERANS SERVICES 

 

AGENDA 
 

ELECTRONIC MEETING 
 

April 16, 2021 

10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 
 

 

I. Opening and Pledge of Allegiance – Michael Dick, BVS Chairman (10:00 – 10:02) 

 

II. Roll Call and Quorum Determination – Michael Dick, BVS Chairman (10:02 – 

10:10) 

 

III. Approval of Agenda – Michael Dick, BVS Chairman (10:10 – 10:15) 

 

IV. Approval of Minutes of the December 17, 2020 meeting – Michael Dick, BVS 

Chairman (10:15 – 10:20) 

 

V. Introduction of VDVS staff and guests – Michael Dick, BVS Chairman (10:20 – 

10:30) 

 

VI. Update on current VDVS operational status – John Maxwell, VDVS Commissioner 

(10:30 – 10:35) 

 

VII. Compact with Virginia Veterans Strategic Priorities – John Maxwell, VDVS 

Commissioner (10:35 – 11:15) 

 

VIII. Post Session Report (Budget and Legislation – 2021 General Assembly – Michael 

Dick, BVS Chairman and BVS legislative members (11:15 – 11:30) 

 

IX. Reports (11:30 – 11:45) 

a. Joint Leadership Council – William Ashton, JLC Chairman 

b. Veterans Services Foundation – Jack Lanier, VSF 2nd Vice Chairman 

c. Virginia War Memorial Foundation – Linda Schreiner, VWMF Chairman 

 

X. New Business: (11:45 – 11:50) 

a. “Good of the Order” Reports – all members 

b. Other new business – as requested by members 

 

XI. Public comment (11:50 – 11:55) – Michael Dick, BVS Chairman 

 

XII. Wrap Up & Adjourn – Michael Dick, BVS Chairman (11:55 – 12:00) 

* Next Meeting 23 June 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 10 of 17 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

VDVS Operational Update 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 11 of 17 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 12 of 17 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 13 of 17 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 

 

VDVS Strategic Priorities 
 

 

 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 14 of 17 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 15 of 17 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 
 

JLC Report to BVS 

 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 16 of 17 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 
 

VSF Report to BVS 

 

 



Board of Veterans Services Meeting Minutes – 4/16/2021 Page 17 of 17 

 

ATTACHMENT 6 
VWM Report to BVS 

 

 
 

 


